
FLUSHING COLORED SCHOOL TIMELINE: 1814-1851

In the early 19th century, there were no public schools in Flushing, Queens. The children of families who could afford to pay attended private schools.
The first free (and integrated) public school in Flushing was founded in 1814 by the Flushing Female Association, an organization of Quaker women.

When the public school system was established in 1841, this school was absorbed and in 1847 became a segregated school known as the Colored School. 

The Flushing Female 
Association (FFA), an 
organization of Quaker 
women, establishes the town’s 
first free and integrated public 
school, in a rented space, to 
serve the children of families 
who cannot afford the private 
schools.

PUBLIC SCHOOL 
SYSTEM ESTABLISHED
(IMAGE: 1; SOURCES: 1, 2, 3)

Flushing establishes its first 
public school system. The 
school run by the Flushing 
Female Association continues 
to operate as part of the public 
system.

THE FFA SCHOOL IS 
SEGREGATED
(IMAGE: 1; SOURCES: 1, 2, 3)

In 1847, the public schools are 
segregated and from that time 
the Flushing Female 
Association school is known as 
the Colored School. Some 
sources place this transition in 
the early 1850s.

SELAH MILLS 
AFRICANUS (1822 –
1870), TEACHER
(IMAGE: 1; SOURCES: 4)

The educator and abolitionist 
Selah M. Africanus has the 
charge of 69 pupils. Subjects 
include spelling, reading, 
writing, geometry, arithmetic, 
and drawing.

QUAKER WOMEN OPEN 
FREE PUBLIC SCHOOL
(IMAGE: 1; SOURCES: 1, 2, 3)



FLUSHING COLORED SCHOOL TIMELINE: 1861-1870

With the passage of time, the original wooden schoolhouse had fallen into disrepair. It was not until 1861 that a new brick schoolhouse was constructed on the 
same site. By 1864, Thomas w. Cardozo had been hired as principal, and oversaw two benefit exhibitions by pupils at Flushing Town Hall that year. In February 

1870, the Flushing Journal published a brief notice of the death of Selah Mills Africanus, who had been a teacher at the school In 1851.

NEW SCHOOLHOUSE 
CONSTRUCTED
(IMAGE: 2; SOURCES: 5, 6)

A brick schoolhouse replaces 
an aging wooden structure 
that occupied the same site on 
Liberty Street (today 38th

Avenue). This photograph was 
taken in 1922.

OPENING EXERCISES
HELD
(IMAGE: 2; SOURCES: 7)

Opening exercises for the new 
schoolhouse are held on 
Monday, February 3, 1862. An 
announcement appeared in 
the Flushing Journal on the 
previous day.

T.W. CARDOZO (1838-
1881), PRINCIPAL
(IMAGE: 3; SOURCES: 8)

Thomas W. Cardozo, Principal 
of the Colored School, 
oversees two exhibitions at 
Flushing Town Hall, in 
February and December. The 
proceeds are donated to a 
freedmen’s aid society in Port 
Royal, Jamaica.

Selah Mills Africanus, principal 
of the Colored School, died, 
perhaps in early 1870. No date 
of or location of death was 
given in the brief notice 
published in the Flushing 
Journal on February 10.

SELAH MILLS 
AFRICANUS DIES
(IMAGE: 1; SOURCES: 4)



FLUSHING COLORED SCHOOL TIMELINE: 1871-1900

In 1880, the Flushing Board of Education established a rule that students from the Colored School would be admitted to Flushing High School upon 
satisfactory completion of an entrance examination. But when four girls from the Colored School passed the examination, the Board shut them out. The Cisco 

family of nearby Jamaica had fought for admission of their children to white schools in their district for many years, ultimately losing an appeal in the State 
Supreme Court in February 1900. The defeat spurred the passage of the Elsberg Bill in the State Legislature in April, abolishing so-called “separate but equal” 

schools in the State of New York.

MISS I.E. SMITH, 
PRINCIPAL 

(IMAGE: 1; SOURCES: 9)

The full name of Miss Smith is 
unknown. A report in the 
Flushing Journal on 
September 2, 1871 noted that 
as many as 100 pupils were 
expected for the fall term.

FLUSHING HIGH 
SCHOOL OPEN TO ALL 
VIA EXAMINATION
(IMAGE: 4; SOURCES: 11)

Four girls from the Colored 
School pass the entrance 
examination for Flushing High 
School but are not allowed to 
attend. The refusal of the 
Board of Education and the 
organized resistance of the 
Black community are reported 
in the Queens and Brooklyn 
newspapers.

MARY ANN ELIZABETH 
SHAW (1850-1905), 
PRINCIPAL
(IMAGE: 5; SOURCES: 11)

Shaw is in charge of the 
Colored School and the Night 
School, which meets two 
evenings per week.

.

CISCO CASE AND END 
OF SEGREGATION OF 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS
(IMAGE: 6; SOURCES: 12)

Elizabeth Cisco’s long battle 
to fight segregation in the 
Jamaica public schools ends 
in a defeat in the Appellate 
Division of the Supreme Court 
of New York on February 6. In 
April the Elsberg Bill is signed 
into law, abolishing 
segregated public schools in 
the State of New York.
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